

FORM OF ORDER AND TRANSMITTAL BY AGENCY HAVING SINGLE HEAD

State of Washington

WASHINGTON STATE ATTORNEY GENERAL'S OFFICE

(agency name)

Administrative Order No. 89-4

(1) I, Kenneth O. Eikenberry, director of Attorney General of Washington

do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington (place)

the annexed rules relating to:

- Amendatory Section WAC 44-10-040 Attorney General Screening of Arbitration Requests
Amendatory Section WAC 44-10-050 Assignment to Arbitration Service
Repealer WAC 44-10-055 Composition of Arbitration Panel
Amendatory Section WAC 44-10-060 Powers and Duties of Arbitration Special Master
Amendatory Section WAC 44-10-100 Subpoenas (continued on reverse side)

(2) ALTERNATIVE A. Use only for Adoption of Permanent Rules.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 89-12-030 filed with the code reviser on June 1, 1989. These rules shall take effect: XXXXthirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2). [] at a later date, such date being

(2) ALTERNATIVE B. Use only for Adoption of Emergency Rules.

I, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is:

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

(3) Pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.04.026 that every agency shall incorporate the most specific, but in no case omit all, of the following language alternatives when adopting or amending rules fill in statement (a), (b), or (c) as appropriate:

- (a) This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW and is intended to administratively implement that statute.
[] (b) This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 19.118.061, 19.118.080 and 19.118.090 which directs that the

Washington State Attorney General's Office (agency)

has authority to implement the provisions of Chapter 19.118 RCW (name of act or RCW citation)

- [] (c) This rule is promulgated under the general rule-making authority of the

(agency) as authorized in RCW

(4) The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

(5) This order, after being first recorded in the order register of this agency, is herewith transmitted to the Code Reviser for filing pursuant to chapter 34.04 RCW and chapter 1-12 WAC.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED

7-24

19 89

By Kenneth O. Eikenberry

ATTORNEY GENERAL OF WASHINGTON

Title

STATE OF WASHINGTON FILED JUL 24 1989 COUNTY CLERK'S OFFICE 89-16-024 11:52 AM

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 89-2, filed 2/3/88)

WAC 44-10-040 ATTORNEY GENERAL SCREENING OF ARBITRATION REQUESTS. (1) A submitted request for arbitration form shall be date stamped upon receipt by the attorney general.

(2) The attorney general will screen the request for arbitration form and supporting documentation to determine if the request is timely, complete and complies with the jurisdictional requirements of chapter 19.118 RCW. The date of screening shall be recorded in the request for arbitration file.

(a) A request will be considered timely if it is received within thirty months from the date of original delivery of the new motor vehicle to the original consumer at retail.

(b) If a request is not timely or does not comply with the jurisdictional requirements of chapter 19.118 RCW the attorney general will reject the request and then notify the consumer of the reason for the rejection.

(c) A request will be considered complete if the information required by the request form is provided in full or if the consumer can provide a reasonable explanation to the attorney general why any supporting documentation may be absent.

(d) If a request is not complete, the attorney general will notify the consumer of any procedures or information required to complete the request.

(3) If the attorney general finds that a request is not complete, the statute of limitations, for purposes of chapter 19.118 RCW, will resume running two business days after the date the attorney general mails notice of incompleteness to the consumer.

(4) A consumer request that is based on a problem which does not manifest itself, is intermittent or unconfirmed shall not preclude an attorney general finding of jurisdiction for purposes of initial screening. However, this section shall not preclude a party from raising jurisdictional issues at the arbitration hearing or subsequent court proceedings.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 88-2, filed 2/3/88)

WAC 44-10-050 ASSIGNMENT TO ARBITRATION SERVICE. (1) After initial screening by the attorney general, all timely and complete requests for arbitration (~~forms~~) which have met the jurisdictional requirements of chapter 19.118 RCW shall be (~~date-stamped-upon approval~~) assigned by the attorney general (~~and-forwarded~~) to the arbitration service which will (~~date-stamp-the-request-upon~~) record the date of receipt in the request for arbitration file.

(2) The arbitration service must determine if it will accept the request for arbitration or reject the request for arbitration, for the reasons set forth in RCW 19.118.090, within three business days after the attorney general has forwarded the request for arbitration to the arbitration service.

(3) The arbitration service shall (~~date-stamp~~) record the date of acceptance or rejection of the request for arbitration (~~immediately-upon-acceptance-of-the-request~~). The acceptance of the request shall commence the running of the (~~thirty~~) forty-five calendar day period in which a hearing must be conducted.

(4) Upon acceptance of a request, the arbitration service shall immediately send a notice of arbitration to the consumer and manufacturer of its acceptance by certified mail/return receipt requested and shall inform the parties that a hearing shall be held within (~~thirty~~) forty-five calendar days. The parties shall be sent formal notice of the actual hearing date by certified mail/return receipt requested, at least ten calendar days before the hearing. The manufacturer shall be sent a copy of the consumer's request and a manufacturer's statement form with the notice of arbitration.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 88-2, filed 2/3/88)

WAC 44-10-060 POWERS AND DUTIES OF ARBITRATION SPECIAL MASTER.

(1) One or more arbitration special masters shall be appointed by the arbitration service to hear and decide preliminary and post-hearing issues that must be resolved, including but not limited to ~~((?))~~; Motions to quash subpoenas, motions for telephone conference hearings, requests for continuances, requests to view the vehicle. The arbitration special master may conduct telephonic conferences with a party or parties, as appropriate, and may request additional written information in order to rule on issues.

(2) Arbitration special masters shall sign a written oath prior to their appointment as arbitration special master attesting to their impartiality. There shall be no ex parte communication initiated by a party between such party and the arbitration special master.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 87-4, filed 12/22/87)

WAC 44-10-100 SUBPOENAS. (1) A subpoena issued by the attorney

general, pursuant to chapter 19.118 RCW, shall identify the party causing the issuance of the subpoena, designate that the subpoena is issued by the attorney general pursuant to RCW 19.118.080, state the purpose of the proceeding and shall command the person to whom it is directed to produce at the time and place set in the subpoena the designated ~~((books,))~~ documents ~~((?))~~ or ~~((things))~~ records under his or her control ~~((at-the-time-and-place-set-in-the-subpoena))~~.

(2) A subpoena may be served by any suitable person over 18 years of age, by exhibiting and reading it to the person, or by giving a copy of the subpoena, or by leaving such copy at the place of his or her abode. When service is made by any other person than an office authorized to serve process, proof of service shall be made by affidavit.

(3) A person to whom a subpoena is directed may move to quash the subpoena. The motion to quash must be accompanied by a short memorandum or statement setting forth the foundation for the motion. Upon motion made promptly, and in any event at or before the time specified in the subpoena for compliance, by the person to whom the subpoena is directed ~~((?))~~ and upon notice to the party ~~((by-whom))~~ who requested the subpoena ~~((was-issued))~~, the arbitration special master may quash or modify the subpoena if it is unreasonable or requires evidence not relevant to any matter at issue.

(4) Any objection to the production of evidence shall be treated as a motion to quash to be decided by the arbitration special master.

(5) If a ~~((person-fails-to-obey-a-subpoena,-upheld-by-the-arbitration-special-master,))~~ nonparty fails to comply with a subpoena and upon an arbitrator finding that without such compliance there is insufficient evidence to render a decision in the dispute, the attorney general shall enforce such subpoena in superior court and the arbitrator shall continue the arbitration hearing until such time as the nonparty complies with the subpoena or the subpoena is quashed. The attorney general ~~((may))~~ shall petition the superior court of the county where the hearing is being conducted for enforcement of the subpoena. The petition shall be accompanied by a copy of the subpoena and proof of service, and shall set forth in what specific manner the subpoena has not been complied with, and shall ask for an order of the court to compel the production of ~~((relevant))~~ relevant evidence for the arbitration hearing. The court upon such petition shall enter an order directing the person to appear before the court at a time and place to be fixed in such order and then and there to show cause why the person has not responded to the subpoena or has refused to comply. A copy of the order shall be served upon the person. If it appears to the court that the subpoena was properly issued ~~((and--upheld--by--the--arbitration--special--master))~~, the court shall enter an order that the

person appear at the time and place fixed in the order and produce the required evidence, and on failing to obey said order the person shall be dealt with as for contempt of court.

(6) If a party fails to comply with the subpoena, the arbitrator may, at the outset of the arbitration hearing, impose any of the following sanctions:

(a) Find that the matters which were the subject of the subpoena, or any other designated facts, shall be taken to be established for purposes of the hearing in accordance with the claim of the party which requested the subpoena;

(b) Refuse to allow the disobedient party to support or oppose the designated claims or defenses, or prohibit that party from introducing designated matters into evidence;

(c) Strike claims or defenses, or parts thereof; or

(d) Render a decision by default against the disobedient party.

(7) The arbitration service shall have three business days from the receipt of the manufacturer's statement to determine whether to submit a request from itself or the parties, to the attorney general to issue a subpoena for the production of evidence. ~~((The-person))~~ A party or nonparty subject to the subpoena must comply or submit a motion to quash before the arbitration special master within five business days of receipt of the subpoena. The arbitration special master shall have five business days to hear and rule on a motion to quash. If the arbitration special master upholds a subpoena the ~~((person))~~ party or nonparty shall have five business days to comply with the subpoena. ~~((If-the-person-does-not-comply-the-attorney-general-may-bring-a-show-cause-motion-in-superior-court.))~~

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 88-2, filed 2/3/88)

WAC 44-10-110 SCHEDULING OF ARBITRATION HEARINGS. The arbitration service has the authority to schedule ~~((at-its-discretion))~~ the arbitration hearing at its discretion and shall notify ~~((both))~~ the parties of the date, time and place by certified letter mailed at least ten calendar days prior to the hearing. Hearings may be scheduled during business hours, Monday through Thursday evenings, or Saturdays.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 88-2, filed 2/3/88)

WAC 44-10-130 DEFAULTS. (1) A party who fails to appear at the arbitration hearing will be considered in default.

(2) If a manufacturer defaults the arbitrator shall hold the hearing. The arbitrator shall make a decision based on the evidence presented by the consumer, and any files or documentation contained in the record.

(3) If the consumer defaults it shall be considered a withdrawal with prejudice of the claim for arbitration. The hearing shall be canceled if the consumer defaults.

(4) The default shall be final unless within twenty-four hours of the hearing time, the manufacturer or consumer contacts the arbitration service to request that the default be set aside. The request shall include evidence of an unforeseeable circumstance that resulted in the failure of the party to appear. Such request shall be considered by the arbitration special master who will hear arguments from both parties on the request to set aside the default ~~((--Arguments))~~ which may be conducted via telephone conference call. If the arbitration special master sets aside the default a new hearing shall be scheduled within ten calendar days of the original hearing date, and

the parties shall be informed of the new date and time at least five business days prior to the hearing date.

(5) If both parties default, the disposition of the case shall be handled as if only the consumer defaulted pursuant to WAC 44-10-130(3).

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 87-4, filed 12/22/87)

WAC 44-10-140 REPRESENTATION BY COUNSEL. (1) Any party to the arbitration hearing may be represented by counsel. If either party opts to be so represented, said party shall immediately notify the arbitration service and the other party of the name and address of the attorney.

(2) The consumer may be represented by himself or herself or by legal counsel, but may not be represented by a nonattorney. However, a person, acting as an interpreter, may assist a party in the presentation of the case if such assistance is necessary because of a mental or physical handicap or language barrier which would preclude the party from adequately representing himself or herself (~~pro-se~~).

(3) A manufacturer may be represented by legal counsel or ((an appointed)) designated representative or agent ((of---the manufacturer)).

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 87-4, filed 12/22/87)

WAC 44-10-150 PREDECISION SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTE. (1) ((One or both of the)) Both parties shall notify the arbitration service and attorney general if the dispute is settled ((at any time after the request for arbitration is received and before the decision is rendered)) after the request for arbitration has been accepted by the arbitration board. The attorney general shall verify the terms of the settlement to which the parties have agreed. The disclosure of terms is for statutorily required record keeping only. The settlement is not subject to approval by the arbitration service or the attorney general.

(2) Notice of settlement shall be treated procedurally as if the consumer had withdrawn from the arbitration process, as set forth in WAC 44-10-120.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 88-2, filed 2/3/88)

WAC 44-10-160 USE OF TECHNICAL EXPERT. (1) An adequate pool of automotive technical experts shall be maintained by the arbitration service for assignment as advisors and consultants to each arbitrator if such services are deemed necessary. Technical experts shall not be directly involved in the manufacture, distribution, sale, or warranty service of any motor vehicle.

(2) Either party may request that a technical expert be assigned to a dispute. Such assignment, however, shall be at the discretion of the arbitrator or the arbitration service. The arbitrator or the arbitration service may upon their own volition assign a technical expert to a dispute. Any request for a technical expert must be made within a time frame that will allow for reasonable inspection by the expert.

(3) If a technical expert is assigned to a dispute, and intends to perform an inspection of the vehicle prior to the hearing, a notice of the time, date and location of the technical expert's inspection of the vehicle will be provided to both parties. This section does not confer a right, for either party, to be present during the inspection of the vehicle, however, either party may be present. ~~((Any request for a technical expert must be made within a time frame that will allow for reasonable inspection by the expert.~~

~~(3)~~ (4) Said expert may be present as advisor and consultant at the arbitration hearing, if he or she has been requested to be present by the arbitrator or arbitration service.

~~((4))~~ (5) The expert shall sign a written oath attesting to his or her impartiality prior to the commencement of each arbitration hearing to which he or she has been assigned.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 87-4, filed 12/22/97)

WAC 44-10-170 POWERS AND DUTIES OF ARBITRATORS. (1) Arbitrators shall have the duty to conduct fair and impartial hearings, to take all necessary actions to avoid delay in the disposition of proceedings, to maintain order, and to meet the sixty day time frame required by RCW 19.118.090 for the rendering of a decision. They shall have all powers necessary to meet these ends including, but not limited to, the power:

(a) To consider any and all evidence offered by the parties which the arbitrator deems necessary to an understanding and determination of the dispute;

~~(b) ((To request the attorney general to issue subpoenas to compel the production of documents, records, and things relevant to the dispute;~~

~~(c))~~ To regulate the course of the hearings and the conduct of the parties, their representatives and witnesses;

~~((d))~~ (c) To schedule vehicle inspection by the technical experts, if deemed necessary, at such time and place as the arbitrator determines;

~~((e))~~ (d) To continue the arbitration hearing to a subsequent date if, at the initial hearing, the arbitrator determines that additional information is necessary in order for said arbitrator to render a fair and accurate decision. Such continuance shall be held within ten calendar days of the initial hearing;

(e) To impose sanctions or to continue a hearing for failure of a party or nonparty to comply with a subpoena pursuant to WAC 44-10-100.

(2) Arbitrators shall maintain their impartiality throughout the course of the arbitration proceedings.

(a) An arbitrator shall sign a written oath prior to the commencement of each arbitration hearing to which he or she has been assigned, attesting to his or her impartiality in that case.

(b) There shall be no direct communication between the parties and the arbitrators other than at the arbitration hearing. Any other oral or written communications between the parties and the arbitrators shall be channeled through the arbitration service ~~((for transmittal to the appropriate arbitrator))~~. Any ~~((such))~~ prohibited contact shall be reported by the arbitrators to the arbitration service and noted in the case record.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 88-2, filed 2/3/88)

WAC 44-10-180 THE ARBITRATION HEARING. (1) The conduct of the hearing shall encourage a full and complete disclosure of the facts.

(2) Arbitrators may admit and give probative effect to evidence which possesses probative value commonly accepted by reasonably prudent people in the conduct of their affairs. They shall give effect to the rules of privilege recognized by law. They may exclude incompetent, irrelevant, immaterial, and unduly repetitious evidence. ~~((Either))~~ A party, at the hearing or any time prior, may request that the arbitrator examine or ride in the vehicle. The arbitrator shall comply with such requests unless the arbitrator determines that such examination or ride is not reasonably practical, not reasonably safe, or not relevant to the issues to be considered at the hearing. ~~((Such determination shall be set forth in the arbitration decision.))~~

(3) The consumer shall present his or her evidence and witnesses, then the manufacturer shall present its evidence and witnesses.

(4) Each party may question the other after each presentation, and may question each witness after testimony. The arbitrator may question any party or witness at any time.

(5) The arbitrator shall ensure that a tape recording record of the hearing is maintained.

(6) The arbitrator shall administer an oath or affirmation to each individual who testifies.

(7) The hearing procedure contemplates that both parties will be present. However, either party may offer written testimony only, as long as the arbitration service and the other party are informed of such and are in receipt of that evidence prior to the day of the hearing.

(8) A party may request presentation of its case by telephone. Such request must demonstrate that it is unreasonable to require the requesting ~~((person))~~ party to attend the hearing in person. The request shall be directed to the arbitration service and will be decided by the arbitration special master. If such request is granted the arbitration service shall immediately notify the other party. In such cases, the party requesting the telephonic hearing shall pay all costs associated therewith, including but not limited to, costs for long distance calls, conference calls, and rental of telephone amplification equipment.

(9) The arbitration service shall assign arbitrators to the pending cases. The choice of arbitrators is not subject to the approval of either party.

(10) Arbitrators must not have a personal interest in the outcome of any hearing, nor be acquainted with any of the participants except as such acquaintance may occur in the hearing process, nor hold any prejudice toward any party. Arbitrators shall ~~((have no current connection to the sale or manufacturer of))~~ not be directly involved in the manufacture, distribution, sale, or warranty service of any motor vehicle((s)).

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 88-2, filed 2/3/88)

WAC 44-10-200 THE ARBITRATION DECISION. (1) The ~~((arbitrator shall send, by certified mail, a decision in each case within sixty calendar days of the notice of))~~ arbitration board shall send the decision to the parties in each case within sixty calendar days of acceptance of the request for arbitration:

(a) All decisions shall be ~~((in writing))~~ written, in a form to be provided by the attorney general, dated and signed by the arbitrator, and sent to both parties and the attorney general;

(b) The date of mailing of the arbitration decision shall determine compliance with the sixty day requirement.

(c) The written decision shall contain findings of fact and ~~((a))~~ conclusions of law as to whether the motor vehicle meets the statutory standards for refund or replacement;

(i) If the consumer prevails and has elected repurchase of the vehicle, the decision shall include the calculations used to determine

the monetary award as set forth in RCW 19.118.090, 19.118.041 and 19.118.021;

(ii) If the consumer prevails and has elected replacement of the vehicle, the decision shall include the information used to identify a reasonably equivalent replacement vehicle and the costs associated with such vehicle and a description of the vehicle as set forth in RCW 19.118.090, 19.118.041 and 19.118.021;

(iii) If the consumer prevails, the decision shall include provisions for the return of the vehicle upon compliance by the manufacturer at a reasonable time and place.

(2) Included with the copy of the arbitration decision sent to the consumer shall be a form to be completed by said consumer, indicating acceptance or rejection of the decision. The consumer must return said form to the arbitration service within ~~((thirty))~~ sixty calendar days from the date of the consumer's receipt of ~~((said notice))~~ the decision. If the consumer has not responded within thirty days, the attorney general's office shall send a ~~((second))~~ notice requesting a response and informing the consumer that failure to respond ~~((within thirty days of receipt of the second notice))~~ shall be deemed a rejection of the arbitration decision.

(3) If the consumer rejects the decision, the arbitration service shall forward general information to the consumer explaining the consumer's right to appeal the decision to superior court. ~~((A form shall be included with the information, and if the consumer files an appeal, the consumer will be requested to return the form to the attorney general indicating the cause number and county of the filing.))~~ The consumer shall have one hundred twenty calendar days from the date of the rejection of the decision to file a petition of appeal in superior court. At the time of filing an appeal, the consumer shall deliver by certified mail or by personal service a conformed copy of the petition to the attorney general.

(4) If the consumer accepts the decision, the arbitration service shall send a notice of acceptance by certified mail to the manufacturer ~~((and))~~ and shall include a manufacturer's intent form ~~((shall also be sent))~~. The intent form shall be returned to the attorney general by the manufacturer within thirty calendar days, of the manufacturer's receipt of notice of consumer's acceptance ~~((to the attorney general))~~ and shall indicate whether the manufacturer intends to comply with the decision or appeal the decision to superior court.

(5) A verification of compliance form shall be sent to the consumer by the attorney general's office. The verification of compliance form shall be completed and returned to the attorney general by the consumer upon the manufacturer's compliance with the decision.

(6) After forty calendar days from the date of the notice of acceptance to the manufacturer, the attorney general shall determine whether the manufacturer has complied with the arbitration decision or appealed to superior court. If the manufacturer has not complied or appealed, the attorney general may impose fines authorized by RCW 19.118.090. ~~((Information regarding the manufacturer's right to contest the fines shall be provided by the attorney general.))~~

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 88-7, filed 6/9/88)

WAC 44-10-220 RESALE OF MOTOR VEHICLE DETERMINED OR ADJUDICATED AS HAVING A SERIOUS SAFETY DEFECT. (1) Resale of a motor vehicle in the state of Washington, pursuant to RCW 19.118.061(1), must conform to the following procedures:

(a) A manufacturer ~~((or))~~ or its agent ~~((or motor vehicle dealer))~~ to whom a motor vehicle with a serious safety defect is returned, shall affix a "Lemon Law resale notice" to the lower center of the front windshield of the vehicle in a manner so as to be readily visible from the exterior of such vehicle. The "Lemon Law resale notice" will set forth that the vehicle was determined to have a serious

safety defect and the specific serious safety defect(s) shall be enumerated. The "Lemon Law resale notice" shall be supplied by the attorney general's office. The "Lemon Law resale notice" may only be removed by the manufacturer, its agent or motor vehicle dealer upon receipt of a signed copy of the consumer disclosure form.

(b) The consumer disclosure form sets forth the specific serious safety defect found in the motor vehicle. The motor vehicle dealer shall ensure that the purchaser of a motor vehicle signs the consumer disclosure form and that a signed copy is delivered to the attorney general's office. The purchaser shall receive a copy of the signed disclosure form.

(c) The manufacturer must ensure that a copy of the signed certificate of correction and warranty is received by the motor vehicle dealer that is to sell the vehicle, the vehicle service division of the Washington state department of licensing and the state attorney general's office. Upon sale of the vehicle, the motor vehicle dealer shall provide a copy of the certificate of correction and warranty to the consumer.

(2) (a) If a manufacturer delivers a motor vehicle that has been found to have a serious safety defect under the Lemon Law, to a motor vehicle dealer outside of Washington state, the manufacturer shall fill out an out of state disposition postcard indicating the vehicle identification number and the destination state, and send the postcard to the attorney general's office.

(b) If a motor vehicle dealer in Washington state has received, for purposes of resale, a motor vehicle that has been found to have a serious safety defect, and such dealer sells, delivers or disposes of such vehicle outside of Washington state, the motor vehicle dealer shall fill out an out of state disposition postcard indicating the vehicle identification number and destination state, and send the postcard to the attorney general's office.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 88-7, filed 6/9/88)

WAC 44-10-230 RESALE OF MOTOR VEHICLE DETERMINED OR ADJUDICATED AS HAVING A NONCONFORMITY. (1) Resale of a motor vehicle in the state of Washington, pursuant to RCW 19.118.061(3) and 19.118.061(4), must conform to the following procedures:

(a) A manufacturer((~~r~~)) or its agent ((~~or-motor-vehicle-dealer~~)) to whom a motor vehicle with a nonconformity is returned shall affix a "Lemon Law resale notice" to the lower center of the front windshield of the vehicle in a manner so as to be readily visible from the exterior of such vehicle. The "Lemon Law resale notice" will set forth that the vehicle was determined to have a nonconformity and the specific nonconformity(ies) shall be enumerated. The "Lemon Law resale notice" shall be supplied by the attorney general's office. The "Lemon Law resale notice" may only be removed by the manufacturer, its agent or motor vehicle dealer upon receipt of a signed copy of the consumer disclosure form.

(b) The consumer disclosure form sets forth the specific nonconformity found in the motor vehicle. The motor vehicle dealer shall ensure that the purchaser of a motor vehicle signs the consumer disclosure form and that a signed copy is delivered to the attorney general's office. The purchaser shall receive a copy of the signed disclosure form.

(c) The manufacturer, if it chooses to have the nonconformity corrected, must ensure that a copy of the signed certificate of correction and warranty is received by the motor vehicle dealer that is to sell the vehicle, the vehicle services division of the Washington state department of licensing and attorney general's office. Upon sale of the vehicle, the motor vehicle dealer shall provide a copy of the certificate of correction and warranty to the consumer.

(2) (a) If a manufacturer delivers a motor vehicle that has been found to have a nonconformity under the Lemon Law, to a motor vehicle dealer outside of Washington state, the manufacturer shall fill out an out of state disposition postcard indicating the vehicle identification number and the destination state, and send the postcard to the attorney general's office.

(b) If a motor vehicle dealer in Washington state has received, for purposes of resale, a motor vehicle that has been found to have a nonconformity, and such dealer sells, delivers or disposes of such vehicle outside of Washington state, the motor vehicle dealer shall fill out an out of state disposition postcard indicating the vehicle identification number and destination state, and send the postcard to the attorney general's office.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 98-5, filed 4/20/88)

WAC 44-10-240 WARRANTY PERIOD FOR CERTIFICATE OF CORRECTION AND WARRANTY. Any warranty of a correction of a defect issued pursuant to the provisions of RCW 19.118.061 shall be for ~~((the-duration-of))~~ not less than one year from the date of resale or an additional twelve thousand miles from the date of resale, whichever occurs first.

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is repealed:

WAC 44-10-055 COMPOSITION OF ARBITRATION PANEL.
